Public Document Pack

Notice of Meeting

Health Scrutiny Committee

Tuesday 12th September 2023 at 1.30pm
In the Council Chamber, Council Offices,
Market Street, Newbury

This meeting can be streamed live here:
https://westberks.gov.uk/hsclive

Date of despatch of Agenda: Monday 4 September 2023

For further information about this Agenda, or to inspect any background documents
referred to in Part | reports, please contact Vicky Phoenix on 07500 679060
e-mail: vicky.phoenixl @westberks.gov.uk

Further information and Minutes are also available on the Council’'s website at
www.westberks.gov.uk

¥ West Berkshire



https://westberks.gov.uk/hsclive
http://www.westberks.gov.uk/

Agenda - Health Scrutiny Committee to be held on Tuesday, 12 September 2023
(continued)

To: Councillors Martha Vickers (Chairman), Jane Langford (Vice-Chairman),
Nick Carter, Stuart Gourley and Owen Jeffery

Substitutes:  Councillors Nigel Foot, Paul Kander, Biyi Oloko and Justin Pemberton

Agenda

Part | Page No.

1 Apologies 1-2
Purpose: To receive apologies for inability to attend the meeting (if any).

2 Minutes 3-10
Purpose: To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting of
the Committee held on 13 June 2023.

3 Actions from previous Minutes 11-12
Purpose: To receive an update on actions following the previous Health
Scrutiny Committees.

4 Declarations of Interest 13-14
Purpose: To remind Members of the need to record the existence and
nature of any personal, disclosable pecuniary or other registrable
interests in items on the agenda, in accordance with the Members’ Code
of Conduct.

5 Petitions 15-16
Purpose: To consider any petitions requiring an Officer response.

6 Access to Primary Care 17 - 32
Purpose: To consider a report on access to Primary Care in West
Berkshire.

7 Continuing Health Care 33-70
Purpose: Following a Peer Review in 2022, the Buckinghamshire,
Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board will present a
report on Continuing Healthcare, the Continuing Healthcare
transformation programme and progress in West Berkshire.

8 Update from Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West 71-72
Integrated Care Board

¥ West Berkshire



http://info.westberks.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=38477&p=0
http://info.westberks.gov.uk/CHttpHandler.ashx?id=38477&p=0

Agenda - Health Scrutiny Committee to be held on Tuesday, 12 September 2023
(continued)

Purpose: The Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West
Integrated Care Board (ICB) to provide an update on activities and
commissioning plans.

9 Healthwatch Update 73-74
Purpose: Healthwatch West Berkshire to provide an update on
Healthwatch’s current activities and feedback from residents.

10 Task and Finish Group Updates 75-76

Purpose: To receive updates on Task and Finish Groups appointed by
the Health Scrutiny Committee.

11  Health Scrutiny Committee Work Programme 77-78
Purpose: To receive new items, and agree and prioritise the work
programme of the Committee.

Sarah Clarke
Service Director (Strategy and Governance)

If you require this information in a differentformat or translation, please contact
Stephen Chard on telephone (01635) 519462.

¥ West Berkshire




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Iltem 1

Health Scrutiny Committee — 12 September 2023

Item 1 — Apologies

Verbal Item

Page 1



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 2



Agenda Item 2
DRAFT

Note: These Minutes will remain DRAFT until approved at the next meeting of the Committee

HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON
TUESDAY, 13 JUNE 2023

Councillors Present: Martha Vickers (Chairman), Nick Carter, Nigel Foot and Owen Jeffery

Also Present: Paul Coe (Interim Executive Director — People) and Catherine Greaves (Senior
Programme Officer — Public Health and Wellbeing) Councillor Alan Macro (Executive Portfolio
Holder: Adult Social Care and Health Integration), Vicky Phoenix (Principal Policy Officer -
Scrutiny), Gordon Oliver (Principal Policy Officer), Sarah Webster (Buckinghamshire,
Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board), Fiona Worby (Healthwatch West
Berkshire), Lajla Johansson (Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated
Care Board), Dr Heike Veldtman (Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated
Care Board), Sarah Bow (BOB Integrated Care Board), Heather Howells (Berkshire West,
Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board), Sara Johnson
(Berkshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust (Beechcroft Day Hospital)) and Theresa Wyles
(Berkshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust)

Apologies for inability to attend the meeting: Councillor Jane Langford and Councillor Stuart
Gourley

PART |

3 Minutes
The Minutes of the meetings held on 14 March 2023 and 25 May 2023 were approved as
true and correct records and signed by the Chairman.

4 Actions from previous Minutes

For Action 2, Councillor Alan Macro noted the visit to Royal Berkshire Hospital was
completed by Members of the Health Scrutiny Committee last year and suggested it
would be useful for the new Members to visit also.

5 Declarations of Interest

Councillor Martha Vickers declared an interest by virtue of the fact that she was on the
Healthwatch Board. She reported that there were no items on the agenda that were
prejudicial. Councillor Vickers would raise any conflicts of interest if they occurred at
future meetings.

6 Petitions

There were no petitions received at the meeting.

7 Dementia Diagnosis

Page 3



HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 13 JUNE 2023 - MINUTES

Sara Johnston (Dementia Service Lead, Berkshire Healthcare NHS Foundation Trust)
presented the report on the work underway to improve awareness and diagnosis of
Dementia within West Berkshire.

During the presentation the following key points were made:

An overview of what Dementia was, the signs of Dementia and noted that
medication could slow progression. An insight was given into the prevalence of
Dementia and how important timely and accurate diagnosis was.

The NHS had a person-centred approach with key guidance to diagnose well,
living well and supporting well. West Berkshire Memory Services were supported
by specialist staff who assessed patients through MRI, Addenbrooks questioning,
detailed history taking and speaking with Next of Kin’s. It was highlighted that mild
cognitive impairment was different to Dementia which affected daily life.

The national diagnosis rate target of 67% was hard to achieve.

Waiting times locally were above the national target. The Trust was offering
support to those waiting longer and they were linked in with the voluntary sector,
social services and the community mental health teams to support patients and
their carers. There were gaps in staffing, issues relating to Covid and high levels
of referrals which had led to the longer waiting times.

They were doing some targeted work with some GP practices and working with
harder to reach communities such as rural areas.

Delays in MRI scans were impacting their waiting lists.

The following points were noted during the Committee’s discussion:

It was confirmed that in care home settings, GP’s used a tool to diagnose
advanced Dementia. Younger people however, benefitted from a longer diagnosis
pathway and assessment at a memory clinic. Most GP practices also had a care
navigator who was often involved with supporting patients when awaiting
diagnosis.

The reason for lower diagnosis rates was multifactorial. It included stigma,
memory assessment delays following covid and significant staffing issues in West
Berkshire and with MRI issues. Combined, this put a lot of pressure on the
service.

It was noted that issues with coding data incorrectly had created discrepancies in
the overall data and it was being addressed monthly. Waiting times were
impacting the Dementia Diagnosis Rate locally but this was a national issue in
diagnosing people in care homes and there was work to do to reduce stigma.

It was advised that the Memory Service was part of national and regional forums
and that they shared learning and best practice with other areas.

It was acknowledged that some GP Practices had lower Dementia Diagnosis
Rates. They did not know the reason for that, but they had a new reporting tool
which would assist for example in understanding issues in rural areas. They did
regular GP education and GP’s were being tasked with annual reviews for patients
with Dementia. GP’s could also diagnose patients in care homes and carry out a
standard set of tests.

The impact of Covid and later diagnosis was discussed in terms of resources
available. The rates of referral and waiting times were considered across
Berkshire and resources were flexed to meet demand. There were significant staff
gaps in West Berkshire and it was a challenge to recruit skilled memory clinic
nurses. Their focus was on retaining nurses and developing career pathways.
They had apprenticeship nursing roles and new roles such as in GP Practices
where there were mental health practitioners to help people onto the right pathway

Page 4



HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 13 JUNE 2023 - MINUTES

quickly. These new roles were beneficial, but caused some challenges in the core
functions such as in the memory clinic teams.

It was confirmed that additional resource had been secured to set up a partnership
board for Berkshire West and to develop a BOB ICB Strategy around the
Dementia pathways. There was an ambition to work more closely with public
health and to work on how to keep the population healthy to prevent dementia.
There were opportunities around the 25% that end up on acute pathways and how
they might divert those individuals away from hospital pathways. There was also
work with care homes to help patients as their dementia advanced.

It was confirmed the target that they worked to was the Dementia Diagnosis Rate.
It was highlighted that Berkshire West had improved by 2% over the last year and
that they were comparable to the South East and were the best performing Place
in the BOB area. There was more information and research around medication to
slow the progress of dementia and new treatment pathways and so they hoped
this would help people come forward. There was also the waiting time matrix
which they were working towards getting down to six weeks.

Staff had been recruited and they had some posts out for recruitment. They had
moved resource across the Trust to help West Berkshire with the higher referral
rates. Gaps in staffing were a challenge and was one of their biggest risks. They
needed to focus on retention.

It was confirmed that they would be looking at quality initiatives in the Dementia
pathway for patients and their carer’s, and at how to personalise care. They were
looking at how to improve the patient experience, how to live well with Dementia
and at the end of life. They had an initiative called ‘I had great care’ which was a
satisfaction questionnaire. Services also had their own way of asking locally for
feedback on the service.

The ageing population was driving significant growth in dementia prevalence.

Care Navigators were in most primary care practices. They were under the same
umbrella as social prescribers. The new GP contract included promotion of these
services so patients could ask to be referred directly to them. Reception staff were
trained to triage into these services.

It was highlighted that it was vital to promote healthy living but that it was difficult
to measure any reduction. It was noted that prevention, new medications and
research was very exciting and that it was important to measure those outcomes.
There was a programme called ‘Dear GP’ where care home staff were trained to
recognise signs of dementia and let the GP know. There has been a lot of training
for care home staff regarding dementia.

The NHS Health Checks programme was commissioned by Public Health. Staff
delivering the programme were trained to share preventative messages
particularly regarding cardiovascular disease. There was not a memory question
as part of the health check programme but it could be included in discussions if
there were concerns about their memory and further referrals could be made.

It was asked if there was more West Berkshire Council could do to get messages
out to the public, improve awareness and help businesses to be more aware and
Dementia friendly. It was confirmed that a lot of activity and public campaigns had
happened and that the Health and Wellbeing Board might have been the place for
the discussion. It was confirmed the strategic leadership piece between the
organisations had been quiet for a while and so they would discuss how they
could collectively make progress. It was noted that inequalities needed to be
addressed in this work.

It was noted that it would be useful to have a follow up on Dementia in the future.

Page 5



HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 13 JUNE 2023 - MINUTES

Action: Dementia update to be added to the work programme.

RESOLVED to note the report.

Diabetes Services

Dr Heike Veldtman (GP, Joint Chair BOB Integrated Cardiac Delivery Network Manager
and lead for CVD. Chair Berkshire West Long Term Conditions Programme Board)
presented the report on Diabetes services.

During the presentation the following key points were raised:

It was highlighted that lifestyle was key in improving and even reversing Diabetes.
The prevalence of Diabetes increased due to Covid. Patients were less active,
eating habits changed, there was a disruption in routine care and there was late
presentation of symptoms. This affected all areas of the BOB ICB. Prevalence of
diabetes in West Berkshire increased and needed better control.

It was highlighted that Berkshire West participated in the Prediabetes Locally
Commissioned Service to monitor and support people at risk of developing Type 2
Diabetes. They identified those at higher risk of developing Diabetes and asked
them in for an annual review. They would agree a care plan with the patient. Part
of this offer was a referral to the National Diabetes Prevention Programme and
Berkshire West had a much higher referral rate than other parts of the BOB ICB.
The patient pathway was described, and the participation of the patient was
highlighted. They carried out annual reviews with patients who were pre-diabetic,
and this would be crucial in preventing Diabetes. At the reviews, tests were carried
out and conversations were had around how the patient approached their
Diabetes. These conversations were fundamental in how to live well with
Diabetes. The care processes and treatment targets were described. Treatment
targets were based on what was important to the patient.

The Diabetes Recovery Local Enhanced Service was described. This was to aid
recovery post-Covid. This included upskilling clinicians, professional development,
support from the Diabetes Clinical Lead and meeting targets of the Eight Care
Processes to pre-pandemic levels.

The following points were noted during the Committee’s discussion:

If a patient was identified as being pre-diabetic, they were offered a referral to the
National Diabetes Prevention Programme. This included lifestyle and healthy
eating advice, and structured education events for the patient and their household.
A full understanding of what was important to the patient was critical in ensuring
that the patient stayed engaged.

As Berkshire West was signed up to the Local Enhanced Service, all practices
could sign up to it and get support from the Clinical Diabetic Lead. This meant
more diabetes was being prevented.

A Member asked if strategies were available to address socio-economic
differences and whether there was data to identify any inequalities. It was
confirmed that they had access to data on inequalities that helped them to address
those more likely to be at risk of diabetes. It was highlighted that healthy eating
was important and more needed to be done to promote healthy food choices. The
West Berkshire Council health in all policies approach had been approved and so
the Council would ensure health was considered in all policy decisions.

It was discussed that the concepts and messages regarding healthy eating should
have been a national approach. It was National Diabetes Week at the time but
awareness of that was low. They needed to align communications from the NHS,

Page 6



HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 13 JUNE 2023 - MINUTES

the Local Authority and nationally to address the issues. It should have been in
schools.

It was highlighted that the approach with patients was individualised and sensitive
to cultures. They could do more and reach out to different faith groups and do
more promotion. Reducing health inequalities was a shared commitment across
organisations. There would be a targeted NHS health checks outreach service to
reach patients who were disproportionately impacted by Cardiovascular Disease
and Type 2 Diabetes but who were underserved by the universal services.

It was confirmed that there was currently very litle communications regarding
Diabetes prevention and what was out there was very corporate and not relatable.
Healthwatch offered to help with promoting any communications. The location of
the communications was vital in reaching the target audience.

It was confirmed that point of care testing could highlight the risk of Diabetes and
lead to a referral for more investigation.

Action: Diabetes update to be added to the work programme.

RESOLVED to note the report.

Update from Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West
Integrated Care Board

Sarah Webster (GP, Joint Chair BOB Integrated Cardiac Delivery Network Manager and
lead for CVD. Chair Berkshire West Long Term Conditions Programme Board) presented

the update from the Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care
Board (BOB ICB).

During the presentation the following key points were raised:

£2,600,000 had been allocated to Berkshire West to reduce inequalities over the
next two years. Public Health teams were collaborating with Primary Care
Networks and the Voluntary Sector to develop a community outreach model at a
very local level. This would initially focus on enhanced health checks and reducing
cardiovascular disease. They were also considering prevention as a programme of
work following the discussions at the Committee.

It was noted that urgent and emergency care was extremely busy due to
respiratory illnesses related to heat and pollen prevalence. Royal Berkshire
Hospital had their busiest day ever in Accident and Emergency on 12 June 2023.
The national Access Recovery Plan had been published and the BOB ICB were
working with practitioners locally to be clear what it meant for them. This was to
ensure patients could access GP’s more easily through improved telephony,
urgent appointments, routine appointments and focus on additional roles at GP
practices. More work was needed to communicate new staffing models with
communities.

Virtual Wards were a remote service to help patients managed their health and
care at home. It had been very successful in avoiding or reducing the length of
hospital stays. This was of huge benefit for patients. This was planned to be
extended from 108 to 120 beds this financial year. Work was ongoing to improve
the links between virtual wards and adult social care services to ensure transition
for patients moving between the services was seamless.

The following points were noted during the Committee’s discussion:

e It was confirmed that work was underway to meet same day and urgent need
with the urgent care centre and the accident and emergency departments.

Page 7



10

HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 13 JUNE 2023 - MINUTES

Primary care was also exceptionally busy and so the BOB ICB were working
through how best to manage those pressures.

The core offering they were planning to use the inequalities funding for was to
reach communities to do blood pressure checks and the broader NHS health
check. They might add on other services depending on local need such as
social prescribing for isolated communities or perinatal support in other
communities if the data was showing that would be more beneficial there. The
supplementary offers were being discussed with the local authority to tailor the
offer to local need. This would be discussed at the West Berkshire Integration
Board with key partners and stakeholders to influence the next stages. It was
confirmed that the service specification would be aligned with the work of
colleagues across Berkshire West so that when the specification and finances
were agreed they would be ready to mobilise the service.

It was confirmed that pharmacies prescribing antibiotics would work within
clinical guidelines due to the risk around overuse of antibiotics. This would
alleviate pressure on Primary Care.

Virtual Wards were around remote monitoring of patients. There were also
initial conversations with adult social care around exploring how technology
could be used to keep people well at home and in helping people avoid going
into residential care settings. A programme of work for this was being explored.
Telehealth and telecare was being prescribed by adult social care to help to
keep people safe.

It was confirmed that the routine GP appointment target was for two weeks but
that there were variations between practices. The BOB ICB were working with
practices individually to understand what they needed to meet that target.
There was concern raised by a Member that in their local area there was a
perception that there was no sign of the new staffing model, waiting times were
longer than two weeks and they could only see a GP. Blood tests were also not
available atthe local Practice.

Action: Sarah Webster to look into availability of additional role
appointments in the Burghfield and Mortimer area and the current waiting
times to see a practitioner at that specific practice.

Members asked if increased funding would be given to Pharmacies to meet the
increased demand in alleviating pressure on Primary Care and if
Pharmaceutical Services had the capacity to meet that demand. It was advised
additional funding had been announced but that it was early days in
determining the detail of the provision at a community level. An update would
be provided at a future Committee meeting. In terms of concerns about specific
local provision, the Health and Wellbeing Board was responsible for
determining if there was a significant gap in provision due to the closure of
pharmacies locally and that it would continue to be reviewed.

Healthwatch Update

Fiona Worby ((Lead Officer from Healthwatch West Berkshire) presented the report from
Healthwatch West Berkshire

During the presentation the following key points were raised:

Healthwatch had recently carried out a survey in the local community to
understand their main health concerns. This determined what Healthwatch would
prioritise investigating and working on in the coming year. It also informed their
watchlist of issues that could also become further work for Healthwatch.

Page 8



11

12

HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 13 JUNE 2023 - MINUTES

Healthwatch West Berkshire was currently being refreshed. They had new staff
members. They would be working in the community much more and were
improving their visibility and communications for example in GP Practices. This
had resulted in hearing more from the community.

Together, this increased feedback and the survey, meant that Healthwatch
priorities for the coming year were access to GP services, quality of GP services,
adult mental health services, impacts of increased cost of living for example
people not buying medicines and mental wellbeing and pharmacy and prescription
services.

On the watch list was phlebotomy, accident and emergency service waiting times
and the Building Berkshire Together programme.

They were also following the Healthwatch England priority of monitoring women'’s
health and particularly maternal mental health.

The following points were noted during the Committee’s discussion:

The adult mental health work by Healthwatch would be alongside the voluntary
sector locally rather than a specific piece of work.

Healthwatch were intending to bring back the ‘voice of disability’ in their work.
There was a conversation about a ‘Young Healthwatch’ to bring in the voices of
young people across Berkshire West.

It was noted the survey response of 127 respondents seemed low, but the results
were clear that access to GP services was a high priority in West Berkshire. They
intended to do the survey annually and with more time to ensure it was
communicated widely.

It was confirmed that an Asylum Seekers report was published last year. Requests
for three month updates on the Healthwatch Recommendations were not
responded to. However, within West Berkshire action had been taken. Reading
and Wokingham were also responding to the recommendations.

The Healthwatch annual report would be published shortly.

Task and Finish Group Updates

The Chairman advised the Committee that there was a Task Group looking into the
healthcare provisions in new developments. The Task group last met on 17 April 2023
with Elisabeth Gowens the Programme Officer for Wider Determinants of Health, Public
Health and Wellbeing. The Healthy Planning Protocol and Health Impact Assessments
were discussed with consideration as to how the Task Group could influence this work.

The following areas were identified:

Members to review the draft healthy planning protocol;

To be involved in how Berkshire Observatory ward data was used by developers
and to communicate with communities;

Understand the funding system and review engagement between planning and the
ICB.

Health Scrutiny Committee Work Programme

The Chairman advised the Committee that the work programme was in development and
asked if Members had any comments or requests for further work.

Members noted the following:

Maternal mental health was an issue that had been raised by Healthwatch.

Page 9



HEALTH SCRUTINY COMMITTEE - 13 JUNE 2023 - MINUTES

e Hearing services and access to support, accessing hearing checks, referrals and
social isolation could be considered.

(The meeting commenced at 1.30 pm and closed at 4.13 pm)

CHAIRMAN e

Date of Sighature

Page 10



TT abed

Actions arising from previous HSC Meetings
HSC is requested to consider the following list of actions and note the updates provided.

Ref No: Date Item/Action Member/Officer Comments/Update
Dementia . , Complete (18/07/2023) Added to the work programme. To be scheduled
8 13/06/2023 Add an update item to the HSC Work programme. Vicky Phoenix when work programme is reviewed.
Diabetes . . Complete (18/07/2023) Added to the work programme. To be scheduled
9 13/06/2023 Add an update item to the HSC Work programme. Vicky Phoenix when work programme is reviewed.
Integrated Care Boad
10 13/06/2023 Query availability of additional role appointments at Sarah Webster In Progress - awaiting response Sarah Webster

Burghfield and Mortimer, blood tests and the
current waiting times

Last updated: 04 September 2023

¢ wa)| epuaby



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Agenda Iltem 4

Health Scrutiny Committee — 12 September 2023

Item 4 — Declarations of Interest

Verbal Item

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



Agenda Iltem 5

Health Scrutiny Committee — 12 September 2023

Item 5 — Petitions

Verbal Item

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



NHS

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire
and Berkshire West

Integrated Care Board

Access to Primary Care 2023/24

LT abed

Dr Heike Veldtman, GP Lead, BOB ICB
Sarah Webster, Executive Director Berkshire West Place, BOB ICB

West Berkshire Health Scrutiny Committee
12th September 2023

9 Wwa)| epuaby

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board



8T abed

Introduction

Access to primary care in West Berkshire — latest position
Primary Care Recovery Plan

Working with other services

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board



Access to primary care
e 13 practices in 4 Primary Care Networks (PCNs)

e GP Patient Survey (July 2023) — green are in top 10 in BW, no practices in bottom 10. National
performance is down across all 3 measures compared to 2022. West Berkshire results are mixed
with some practices showing decline in satisfaction but others improving across all measures.

Experience of getting Experience of making
Overall experience (% good) | through on phone (% good) appointment (% good)
Chapel Row Surgery 93% 94% 85%
Mortimer Surgery 75% 72% 60%
g? Theale Medical Centre 63% 26% 38%
L% The Boat House Surgery 96% 90% 88%
= Hungerford Surgery 85% 90% 72%
© Kintbury & Woolton Hill Surgery 93% 89% 78%
Lambourn Surgery 78% 67% 60%
Eastfield House Surgery 68% 61% 47%
Strawberry Hill Medical Centre 73% 55% 60%
The Downland Practice 80% 66% 64%
Burdwood Surgery 79% 67% 67%
Falkland Surgery 66% 39% 37%
Thatcham Health Centre 65% 45% 49%
BOB 73% 53% 55%
National 71% 50% 54%

* Friends and Family Test — 93.52% of patients reported positive experience (across 7 practices).
ICB average 86.83%.

3 Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board



0z abed

Appointment types

West Berkshire
Appointments by Mode

Activity has
remainder high

over the last year.

60.4% of

appointments were )
face-to-face in :
West Berkshire in — s
June 2023

== \Video Conference/Online

compared to 69%
nationally, 61.6%

across BOB and — T T T~ &=
62.4% in Berkshire

West as a whole.

o

Aug 22 Sep 22 Oct 22 Nov 22 Dec 22 Jan 23 Feb 23 Mar 23 Apr 23 May 23 Jun 23

4 Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board



TZ abed

Time between booking and appointment (Target 85% within 2 weeks)

81.3% of appointments West Berkshire Time Between Booking and Appointment
took p|ace within 2 weeks Appointments Not Typically Scheduled in Advance
of request in June 2023. 100

This compares to 87.2%
across BOB, 85.6% in
Berkshire West and 86% o T~ T~ (813
nationally. Figures
exclude appointments

typically scheduled in — same Day

50
advance. \_—\/\ == Two Weeks

47.6% of appointments
took place on the day of
request, compared to
52.8% across BOB,

%

254

53.2% in Berkshire West L | | | | | | | | | |
as a whole and 50.2% Aug 2022 Sep 2022 Oct 2022 Nov 2022 Dec 2022 Jan 2023 Feb 2023 Mar 2023 Apr 2023 May 2023 Jun 2023
nationally. Data from NHSE GPAD

5 Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board



Z22 9bed

Follow-up actions

Appointment data is triangulated with GP Patient Survey data, Friends and Family data and soft intelligence
and interplay between face-to-face access, two week booking and same day appointment availability is
assessed, also considering wider pressures and staffing capacity.

Where GP Patient Survey results are low or have declined significantly, further review of the relevant PCN
Capacity and Access Improvement Plan (see below) is underway to ensure actions will improve position.

ICB is also targetting discussions with identified practices — practices identified as outliers across multiple
measures are being prioritised for follow-up through the ICB’s contract review visit cycle.

All practices are encouraged to engage in peer review of access arrangements and sharing of best practice
through their PCNs.

ICB is rolling out tools to support practices to monitor demand and adjust capacity accordingly.

ICB is working to support all practices to improve infrastructure and proceses through Primary Care
Recovery Plan and associated workstreams

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board



£z abed

ACCGSS Recove ry Plan: Delivery plan for recovering access to primary care (england.nhs.uk)

7 Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board


https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2023/05/PRN00283-delivery-plan-for-recovering-access-to-primary-care-may-2023.pdf

{72 abed

Empowering patients through new ways of accessing care

Expanding use of NHS App
« 59% of patients currently have the NHS App (Berkshire West)
»  Working with practices to link it to practice clinical systems for appointments, prescriptions and messaging

Self-referral pathways
» Arrangements being put in place for patients to self-refer for services such as physiotherapy, podiatry, weight
management and audiology without needing to see a GP

Extended role for community pharmacy
» 118 patients referred to community pharmacy for minor iliness in West Berkshire in April/May — potential to

increase

* 97% community pharmacies signed up to provide blood pressure checks — 14K provided in 2022/23 (BOB
figures)

» National consultation planned on allowing pharmacies to supply a range of medication for which a
prescription is currently required

Supporting patients to self-monitor long-term conditions — e.g. blood pressure, blood glucose

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board



Gz abed

‘Modern General Practice’

Advanced telephony and online access
« Digital telephony allows improved call management, call-back options and shared call handling if

required. In place in 10 West Berkshire practices, 3 more to follow.
* Online contact option in place in all but two practices in West Berkshire

Care navigation training to support triage/signposting
* Practices training receptionists and other staff to take on care navigation, building on previous

projects in West Berkshire

Training package for practices and funding for additional capacity to support change process
* Practices engaging with national General Practice Improvement Programme training offers supporting
them to review modes of access and better match staffing and capacity to demand

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board




ICB has agreed a Capacity and Access Improvement Plan with each PCN focussing on patient
experience, telephony/online access and appointment recording. Examples of actions include:
4
(" Working with Patient Peer review of online (" Review of triage )
Participation Groups to consultations and use of pathways and
increase survey digital telephony segmentation of patients
response rates and act functionality to ensure targeted
8 \_ on results ) \. / \_ response y
4 ) ( )
Increasing level of 4 ~\
bookable appointments Care co-ordinators used Increasing referrals to
and reviewing demand at to support pre- community pharmacy
different times appointment checks for
J long-term conditions Y \. J

10 Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board



Building capacity

Recruit and retain more GPs and other staff — linking to wider NHS Workforce Plan

@ Headcount @FTE

&=
©
il
n
©
2
=
©

S
o
i
)
@)

West 51 22 27 128
300 Berks

(av)
Ww BW 40 19 29 110

)2 abed

UK 43 27 26 119
GP Whole-time equivalent and Headcount (Berkshire West figures) Whole-time equivalent per 100,000 patients

11 Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board



ARRS STAFF WORKING IN WEST BERKS PCNS- MARCH 2023

Continued commitment to funding
Additional Roles Reimbursement
Scheme staff in PCNs — this national
scheme provides funding for PCNs to
diversify their workforce by appointing staff
to roles not traditionally part of primary
care to work across a number of practices.

m Care Coordinator

m Clinical Pharmacist

W First Contact Physiotherapist
Mental Health Practitioner Band 7

W Mursing Associate

W Parame dic

£1.85m budget fully utilised by West
Berkshire PCNs in 2022/23 employing 39
staff.

W Pharmacy Technician

gz abed

M Physician Associate
W Social Prescribing Link Worker

W Trainee Nursing Associate

2023/24 budget increased to £2.54m —
forecast full utilisation.

12 Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board



Reducing bureaucracy

Improving interface between primary care and other services:

« Arrangements for non-urgent communications reviewed and updated

* Primary care meets with other services in Clinical Interface Group to review pathways and
bottlenecks

Reducing administrative workload for practices:

« Improvements to fit notes and discharge letters to reduce workload for GP practices

« Implementing new arrangements for health certification e.g. social housing applications, jury
service exemptions

6¢ abed

Simplifying reporting:
« PCNs now working to smaller set of performance indicators

13 Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board



Other elements of Access Recovery Plan

ICBs required to produce Access Improvement Plan and report to public board in Autumn and
Spring to include:

« Summary of actions practices/PCNs have committed to

* Progress report on reducing bureaucracy to manage pressures on primary care

National communications campaign — to be supplemented with local communications messaging for
winter and beyond around how and when to access general practice and videos on new roles. ICB is also
working to support Healthwatch patient engagement project focussing on access to primary care.

0€ abed

Intended changes to planning policy to ensure primary care infrastructure needs taken into

account and are part of Infrastructure Levy arrangements.

» |CB responded to Local Plan review and is liaising with planning team around Section 106 contributions
from developers.

* Regular meetings in place with planning leads.

14 Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board



How primary care works with other services

* Proactive care and multidisciplinary teams — continuing to engage with Locality Integration Board to
further develop approach proactive (anticipatory) care

« Diagnostics — ICB programme aims to increase GP direct referrals for both imaging and physiological
tests. Spirometry and phlebotomy pathways current focus.

 New secondary care pathways — working with trusts on joint pathways including enhanced community
provision e.g. dermatology, paediatrics

T¢ abed

* Prevention and inequalities — PCNs engaged in projects to deliver health checks through outreach model
based in community venues, targeted to those affected by health inequalities.

15 Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board



Z2¢< abed

Questions and discussion

16

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board



Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and
Berkshire West Integrated Care System:
Continuing Healthcare Peer Review
July 2022

REPORT

) Wal| epuaby



7€ abed

Background

NHS England has commissioned the LGA to deliver a short series of peer reviews of continuing healthcare (CHC) services. CHC is a ‘whole system’
process, and success is dependent upon effective partnership and multi-disciplinary working. These reviews will bring together system partners to
reflect and evaluate local progress and outcomes for local communities.

The reviews are intended to:

»  Support systems to identify and share improving practice which support personalised, high-quality and safe care — they are not performance
management activity

* Help system leaders understand better their strengths and areas for development to strengthen system leadership and lead to improvements in
service delivery — they are not reviews of the operational delivery of the CHC process

* Provide a safe space for system partners together to consider new and better ways of working together, build shared understanding and agree
next steps.

The review is set against the current context of the Health and Care Act 2022, including the change in leadership structures with the development of
integrated care systems (ICSs), and an updated National Framework for NHS continuing healthcare and NHS-funded nursing care and associated

guidance to reflect the transfer of responsibility for CHC and funded nursing care (FNC) from clinical commissioning groups (CCGs) to integrated care
boards (ICBs).

A peer review is a sector-led, constructive and supportive process which is founded on a principle of continuous system improvement. It is not an
inspection and no rating or score is given. Rather it is an opportunity for systems to reflect on what is working well and what needs developing further
locally. This peer review was an opportunity for clinical and care leaders and practitioners from across Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West
(BOB) to reflect on how CHC is delivered at place level and across the new ICS, and how this delivery might be strengthened in the future.

The peer review was delivered by an experienced team of peers drawn from senior leaders in health and care, with experience of both CHC and its role
within wider service planning and delivery. Insight was collected and triangulated from interviews across each workstream over two days and discussed
as a team to reach the position reflected in the feedback session on 20 July 2022 and detailed in this report.

This report reflects the strengths identified as well as areas for consideration and offers recommendations for how local partnerships and practice
might be further developed, to achieve the best outcomes possible for those individuals — and their loved ones — navigating the CHC process across
Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West.


https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/nhs-continuing-healthcare-and-nhs-funded-nursing-care

Ge abed

Peer review process

To reflect place-based arrangements of continuing healthcare practice and process in BOB, the peer team was split into three sub-teams to cover
the footprints of Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West (comprising the three unitary authorities of Reading, West Berkshire and
Wokingham).

In advance of the peer review, each of the place-based partnerships received a ‘ways of working’ self-assessment survey, which was circulated to
the workforce involved in the CHC process locally, to get their perception on how they feel the service is working. The results of each place-based
partnership’s survey are displayed in the cover sheet of their respective sections.

The peer team fed back for each place-based partnership (included as such in this report) and also on an ICS level — the peer team spoke to the
ICS senior lead in CHC as part of this.

The peer review took place during July 2022, and the timetable included 20 focus groups and sessions over two days, with representation, where
possible, from the following organisations and services across the three localities:

* CHC senior leadership in health and social care

» Healthwatch, Age UK, and Carers Associations

« Clinical and social care practitioners from across acute, primary and community settings

* Finance and commissioning leads

* Providers

« Voluntary sector and hospice

Following initial presentation of the team's findings to system partners on 20 July, this report has been developed for the Buckinghamshire,
Oxfordshire and Berkshire West ICS leadership, and their corresponding organisations, to continue their improvement journey.

Insight was collected and fed back under four key lines of enquiry (KLOEs) — which are detailed in the following slides. This report is structured to
include observations against each of these KLOEs and a set of recommendations for each locality, as well as ICS-wide reflections.

The peer team would like to thank BOB colleagues for their participation in this peer review, recognising the efforts of those who helped us to put
the review together, and to all colleagues interviewed for their honesty, openness and willingness to use this opportunity to improve partnership
working and practice.



CHC reviews — key lines of enquiry

Strategy & Vision

Conditions for Success
Making it Real ‘I'’/’'We’ Statements

v Create a desire to make things better for local people
‘We have a ‘can do’ approach which focuses on what matters to people and we think and act v"Invest time to build relationships and trust
creatively to make things happen for them’ v Agree a collective vision and shared common purpose
v Clarify lines of decision making and accountability.
v Simplify and prioritise plans
‘I have care and support that enables me to live as | want to, seeing me as a unique person v Develop a shared understanding of performance and capacity based on
with skills, strengths and personal goals! live, accurate data.

1. Is there a clear vision and common purpose agreed by place and system partners, underpinned by a set of shared priorities? How is this being built on as places and system
develop within the new architecture?

2. Is this strategy and vision supported and understood across organisational boundaries and at all levels of the workforce?
3. How is the strategic vision aligned to wider system delivery plans and governance footprints (BCF, ICS)?

4. Are there clear governance structures in place and an agreed set of live metrics to give one version of the truth across the health and care interface? How do system leaders
assure themselves that performance issues are being addressed?




CHC reviews — key lines of enquiry

Performance

Making it Real ‘I'/'We’ Statements Conditions for Success
We tell people about person-centred approaches to planning and managing their support I aEENT el [V Elale EIfe NI e RT3 TR gV S LN ANEI I o Ts ol (elo T
and make sure that they have the information, advice and support to think through what RN R IE N RV PN RO Yo lati oY 14
will work best for them! v Use a single agreed dataset to drive system improvement, focused on
outcomes for individuals
‘I am supported to make decisions by people who see things from my point of view, with v" Improve patient flow and capacity across the whole system
concern for what matters to me, my wellbeing and health: v Systematically and sustainably implement the 9 High Impact Changes

™ 1. How do staff across the health and care interface work together to identify people in need of higher levels of care including continuing healthcare?

2. Are pathways simplified and is there a shared understanding of the services available to support people to achieve the best outcomes? Is there a shared understanding of
what terms and descriptions of services mean across the system?

3.Are practitioners enabled to make person-centred decisions that are not constrained by system processes and/or service capacity?

4. What model and approach has been adopted to ensure safe, appropriate and quality care for people as they move through the health and care system? Were plans
based on evidence and best practice?

* Is there truly a Home First philosophy that promotes independence and to what extent has this been achieved?

* What impact has the Hospital Discharge Policy had on the assessment and provision of CHC?

* Is there a shared, comprehensive understanding of patient flow and a person’s destination based on live data?




CHC reviews — key lines of enquiry

Leadership, behaviour & culture

Making it Real ‘I'/'We' Statements Conditions for Success

'We work in partnership with others to make sure that all our services work seamlessly

: : . Needs to be actively driven by system leaders
together from the perspective of the person accessing services

v" Agree shared, focused priorities

v' Open communication to build trust

v" Give staff the autonomy to make decisions, supported by clear points of escalation

v' Systematically learn about how the system works and support staff to be involved
in continuous improvement

v" Celebrate success and recognise individual contributions

‘I have care and support that is coordinated and everyone works well together and
with me’

1. How effectively do leaders collaborate to plan and deliver services so that organisations and staff are encouraged to work together to meet the needs of their population?
2. Do partners have autonomy and the freedom to act; are solutions locally designed and delivered? Is there a culture of collaboration rather than blame?
3. Do system leaders create an environment in which frontline staff are empowered to make decisions based on what would have the best outcomes for an individual?

4. How has learning from the pandemic been captured and shared across the system to inform strategic planning and improvement? Is there evidence of meaningful
engagement with frontline staff, independent providers, voluntary sector organisations and people who have used services?

5. How have information governance arrangements and the rapid development of digital solutions enabled and improved information sharing across health and social care?




CHC reviews — key lines of enquiry

Conditions for Success

Making it Real ‘I'/'We’ Statements Align system capacity to population need
Recognise the role the third sector plays in building community
‘We talk with people to find out what matters most to them, their strengths and what they want to resilience

achieve and build these into their personalised care and support plans! Less reliance on bed based solutions is needed for home first models to
succeed

Co-produce the future market strategy and create flexible employment
‘I have a co-produced personal plan that sets out how | can be as active and involved in my opportunities

community as possible! Agree pooled budgets and risk share arrangements underpinned by
evidence

1. Is there a joined-up, strengths-based approach to commissioning and delivery across health and care? What risk sharing and pooled budget arrangements are in
place?
2. Is there a joint commitment to adapting the market based on a shared understanding of current demand and capacity? Is capacity based on actual demand or the
demand that would achieve the best possible outcomes?
» Are independent and voluntary sector providers engaged with as system partners as well as providers?
+ Are opportunities to expand the use of digital solutions and assistive technology being explored?
3. Is there a strategy for ensuring there are sufficient staff who have the right skills across the health and care system? How are system partners (including independent
providers) using this experience to work together to develop the workforce to meet both the current and future needs of the local population?

4. How do system partners assure themselves that resources supporting the interface of health and social care are achieving sustainable high quality care and
promoting people’s independence?

5. How personalised is your approach to supporting people’s long term care and how are personal health budgets used to enable this?




O abed

Overview

The peer team would like to thank all those involved in what was at times a challenging review. We met staff of the highest calibre, demonstrating strong reflective practice
and creative care planning. We met managers and other staff wholly committed to wanting to achieve the right outcomes for the people they serve and others struggling
with trying to move forward in very difficult circumstances. We also met strong and vibrant patient representatives keen to maintain the good practice, and an independent
sector which want to be engaged and involved.

The peer team found areas of excellent practice in Buckinghamshire and Oxfordshire, which, if made universal across the ICS and supported by consistent processes and
assurance, can provide the ICS with a foundation for excellence in delivery of CHC.

The peer team heard about examples of strong and effective partnerships, which have been hard won in Oxfordshire over several years, and which are now developing in
Buckinghamshire as a result of colleagues taking a similar approach to Oxfordshire and investing in the transformation. These partnerships, and the work that has led to
them, can provide a model which could support Berkshire West to address some of the challenges which this locality presently faces.

As is the case in all areas of the health and care system, resources are a constant issue. This relates to workforce (both for clinical and care leadership, and in middle
management roles); and to finance, where demographics and changing population needs are placing an increasing strain on health and social care budgets. There is
understandable concern about the rising cost of CHC. This should not be addressed by focusing on the numbers of people in receipt of CHC, but by looking across the ICB
and its services, at the effective use of reablement; the deployment of specialist teams, for example learning disability; and the opportunity for creative joint commissioning.

The peer team heard from colleagues their commitment to and enthusiasm for the journey ahead, with a genuine ambition and willingness to improve outcomes for
people and their carers across the whole system. Any improvement plans that are developed would benefit from input from those with lived experience, family carers,
advocacy groups and representatives from providers in both the independent and voluntary sectors. Colleagues that the peer teams were able to speak to from these
groups were engaged and open to being involved in this work.

We heard an articulation of your ambition that “all people who are eligible across Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West will get CHC at the right time and in
the right place”. This is welcome, however more work is needed to develop a clear and consistent understanding of what this means in practice across the ICS, perhaps
including a Joint Funding Policy and Disputes Policy and shared approach to appeals panels and resolution of disputes (which could in turn help to resolve the backlog of
disputed cases where these are found).

The formation of the ICS might offer the perfect opportunity in this regard, to build on the observations and recommendations of this peer review, but also to take best
practice learning from across your system and develop a shared and more equitable approach to CHC, for the benefit of your community.



Tt abed

Buckinghamshire ‘Ways of working’ self-assessment survey

To what extent...

Does your system put people first?

Do people in need of care and support have confidence their best interests
are thefocus of the people assessing and sup porting them?

Are people shown dignity and respect?

Are dedisions underpinned by clear rationale?

Are recommendations about a person's Continuing Healthcare made within a
multi-disciplinary team?
Are people empowered as co-producers in the assessment and planning of
their care?

Do practitioners have honest "difficult’ conversations (g emotional
consequences) with individuals?

Does advocacy support individuals to be involved Tully?

Do agencdies work together to support timely decsion-making?

Are joint funding and pooled budget amangements used 1o support effective
collaborative working?

Are people’s needs understood holistically?

|5 supporttailored to maximise independence and focus on what matters
most to the individual ?

Is care coordinated and supports continuity ?

ls communication clear, accessible and timely? |5 there access to a range of
methods and took to support effective communication?
When transferring funding between organisations is this a seamless process
for the individual and their loved ones?

0 10% 20% 30% 4% L% 6% T0% 20% S0%:  100%

#

B To agreat extent To a moderate extent To asmall extent B Notat al



2y 9bed

Buckinghamshire - Strategy and Vision

There has been an impressive improvement journey over the past four years, for which Buckinghamshire colleagues can be very proud. The peer team felt
strongly that there was a collaborative approach from leadership through to practitioners and a particular success in the many disputes of 18-24 months ago
to being now reduced to nil. The peer team was impressed by how positive and productive relationships were at all levels of the CHC process. Work is now
being done to forecast future demand, examine current commissioning intentions and review current financial predictions.

The strength of the leadership by the CCG CHC lead and the local authority CHC lead was very impressive and deserves a specific mention in this review. This
has not been without some very hard work — “mindfulness to work together”, “married to the local authority — we cannot divorce” — and an understanding and
grasp that it was within their gift to work it out and sort the challenges themselves. This is very clear to the staff that they lead, who understand the strategic
vision and know they are supported to do the right thing for the person involved in the CHC process.

The joint approach works well for the population being served and it is clear that the positive relationships are underpinned by mutual trust and respect. The
peer team felt that staff were empowered and entrusted to work effectively together to make as many decisions within the multidisciplinary team (MDT) as
possible, minimising the need to escalate to the decision-making panel, thereby achieving a quicker decision turnaround. An example of where this has
worked well and had a significant impact on individuals is the success of fast track care being delivered by a local hospice service.

There was an acknowledgement that there is still work to do, with recognition of some tension between the cost of providing the assessment service and the
cost of commissioning this by the ICB, and that additional resources may be needed (e.g. an additional post). There is not a full section 75 in place currently,
and while the local authority commissions all CHC, it was reported that it may not have the commissioning ability for the most complex packages of care.

Similarly, there is a recognition of a lack of local provision for individuals with complex learning disability and autism (LDA) needs, and acknowledgement of a
need to have commissioners for more specialist packages of care, which may need shaping. (The peer team noted that individuals historically sectioned and
discharged on s117 will become CHC eligible, and the ICB may need to assure itself that it is ready for this. Similarly, individuals with an LDA diagnosis will no
longer be sectioned unless they have mental health issues that require this form of liberty deprivation (i.e. on the basis of behaviour alone), and there needs
to be options available in a crisis other than hospital.)



ey abed

Buckinghamshire - Performance

The peer team was impressed by practitioners who peers felt kept the focus on the individual and their outcomes, with good practice examples being cited around
onward referral, mental health and wider wellbeing. As well as being a good end in itself, this is an opportunity to manage or even reduce the size of care packages, and
one way to balance demand with financial pressures without threatening the present approach to eligibility, which, to Buckinghamshire colleagues felt “right”.

The peer team heard some concern about triage becoming too stringent, and that verbal evidence needs to carry as much weight as the written word, especially for
individuals and their representatives. Person-centred care provision that focuses on an individual's strengths can, in the long term, lead to cost reduction in other health
and social care services through less acute hospital admissions and referrals to GPs, mental health and LD services, and avoidance of LD hospital admission.

The training that has been developed and provided by Oxford Health Foundation Trust (OHFT) in the past few years has now been rolled out into the Buckinghamshire
system and has been positively received by colleagues, contributing to a better rounded and more consistent understanding of CHC. Understanding of the needs of the
complex family dynamics, the clinical needs and the safeguarding concerns involved in CHC needs time and investment in staff — “time taken to do CHC well is not
inconsiderable”.

The peer team was impressed by the processes of sign-off and financial oversight — and suggests this practice is shared with the wider system. Strong linkage and
regular information flow between practice, commissioning and finance allow the local system to track capacity, and supports it to forecast spend accordingly. It also
enables staff to maintain oversight of commissioned packages of care and develop appropriate challenge of these within frontline practice. Checklists are completed by
NHS, Buckinghamshire County Council and provider staff trained in their use, and the involvement of the local authority is checked if another trained person has
completed the checklist.

The peer team heard some excellent practice, in line with the National Framework, with neither health nor social care staff seen as gatekeepers of access to services. The
emphasis is on needs and evidence, and with proportionate evidence to back up decision support tool (DST) content — this has the power to promote access and equity
for all those who are potentially eligible. People eligible for CHC continue to have access to the universal services, and individuals and their representatives are involved
in assessment, with advocacy available where needed.

Providers are keen to be engaged with and listened to. There is an ongoing reliance on agency staff to provide the commissioned CHC assessment and case
management model, and we hope that the additional substantive clinical post will be easily recruited to.



¥t abed

Buckinghamshire - Leadership, Behaviour and Culture

There was evidence of a strong commitment to partnership working, both from managers and clinicians, and the peer team heard of many successes resulting from
this. The introduction of the NHS CHC Operational Group was endorsed by health and social care operational leads, and is a strong demonstration of joint leadership,
including terms of reference, joint working protocol, regular joint workshops, and an ambition to embed CHC champions in district nursing and homecare teams.

The strong leadership was also reflected in the approach to management of money within the system and there is clear and appropriate separation between the
decisions of the DST and the funding of the case — with eligibility driving decision-making. The s75 is being revamped and creative approaches are being considered
to make the best use of scarce resources. The approach taken when the system was struggling — to look at what Oxfordshire was doing and mirror — was
commendable as was the introduction of consultants to help with the transformation required.

The strength of the senior leadership relationship filters down, encouraging open and frank conversations at all levels. Leaders create safe spaces in which to have
those conversations, using evidence to make decisions and supporting staff to learn from the discussion. Colleagues accept that they do not always get it right, but
taking the approaches of learning together and trusting each other to avoid duplicating assessments, and embedding the clinical review in the process before the
DST, are important enablers to getting it right. Extra training is provided as a result of learning, for example seizure management and Mental Health Act training.
People and their loved ones attend all DSTs, in an area where the population is not afraid to challenge.

Staff feel empowered to have a professional dispute, holding each other to account but maintaining the mutual respect and trust that underpins the right culture.
There is a determination to sort out issues, “between ourselves — nothing will go to arbitration”, and all in the best interests of the individual. CHC leaders are
accessible to staff to discuss cases and practice, and there is a network of champions in nursing homes and other health and social care teams in the hospital and in
the community. The CCG encourages a positive approach to CHC.

The peer team heard that there are few home care options for adult NHS CHS, and wondered whether there is real choice available to individuals about where their
care will be provided. Overemphasis on safety and sustainability promotes risk-adverse practice, potentially leading to poorer outcomes for individuals where they are
driven by cost and not individual choice — it is worth reflecting on whether there is really choice over where care is provided. Choice policies have had legal threats
previously on the grounds of impeding basic human rights to have a family life. A regular review of cases against the National Framework (possibly on a peer basis
with for example Oxfordshire colleagues) could provide assurance that you are NHS Continuing Healthcare compliant in this regard, and that local practice is
defendable if challenged.



Gy abed

Buckinghamshire - Community Capacity

Providers identified that the commissioning of CHC by the local authority was done well but providers are concerned that the introduction of the ICS will
affect current levels of expenditure — it is not a discretionary spend and needs to be properly funded according to eligible need.

In Buckinghamshire, providers see work being done to model the cost of CHC and strong relationships between health and social care leaders, but there is
concern that the burden of CHC may shift to the care provider if needs are not understood and if funding is inadequate.

The providers see pragmatism in the policy and funding, and are keen that Buckinghamshire looks at the joint funding model in Oxfordshire, particularly in
relation to home-based care — “CHC is not a treatment option”; it is a funding source.

There is concern that the improvements made at place level could get lost in the move to the ICS and providers want to see the right balance between local
delivery and accountability, and a BOB-wide approach.

The provision of the CHC assessments by the OHFT clinical staff impressed the peer team, who wanted it recognised in this feedback. Collaborative working
with the MDT; honest and open conversations between staff; the operation of the decision-making panel; and the handling and reduction in numbers of
disputes all deserve highlighting. Dedicated training for care providers as well as the open lines of communication between health staff and the local
authority are further examples of good practice.

The peer team was particularly impressed with the case example of an individual with a learning disability who was said to need extra one-to-one care. The
clinical lead explored what the intensive support team could offer to address the underlying causes of the challenging behaviour. This then became an
integral part of the package of care, resulting in expert support for the individual without increasing the CHC costs. This is an excellent example of how to
provide an efficient approach to CHC without denying people their right to CHC support. Developing an understanding of the causes of challenging
behaviour and addressing it in such a way is not only effective in delivering the best outcome but also avoids unnecessary admissions to specialist hospitals
and long-term care.



oy abed

Buckinghamshire - Recommendations

* What has been achieved is impressive and has taken time to build, implement and embed — we would urge Buckinghamshire to seek to maintain

these relationships and established partnership working to survive the churn of personnel, reorganisation and changes in governance. The
improved outcomes for your community are demonstrative of the strength in collaboration — we hope this helps you to evaluate your progress
and be proud of what you have achieved so far.

+ It is worth reflecting on whether the excellent service that is being provided to the population is too reliant on agency staff to provide the

commissioned CHC assessment and case management model. We urge you to ensure any changes are co-designed with the clinical leads to
ensure that case management does not become more complex and time-consuming, impacting on assessment and review, and consider where it
can be streamlined.

» Consideration might helpfully be given to further joint commissioning arrangements and capacity assessment, in particular for more complex

cases, specialist services, and for example CHC for younger people, and consider how to align across all commissioning in the wider market (e.g.
around discharge to assess) as this will impact on market shaping and cost.

* It would be helpful to evaluate your processes regularly with those using CHC and their loved ones, to ensure that process is built around the

person.

+ Sharing local processes for financial sign-off and budgetary oversight with others in the ICS could support learning in other parts of the system,

while also offering peer challenge back to Buckinghamshire practice around eligibility, access, choice and packages of care.



) 9bed

Berkshire West ‘Ways of working’ self-assessment survey

To what extent...

1. Doesyour system put people first?

2. Do people in need of care and support have confidence their best
interests are the focus of the people assessing and supporting them?

3. Are people shown dignity and respect?

4_ Are decisions underpinned by clear rationale?

5. &re recommendations about a person's Continuing Healthcare made
within a multi-disciplinary team?

&. Are people empowered s co-producersin the assessment and
planning of their care?

7. Do practitioners have honest and 'difficult’ corversations (eg
emaotional consequences | with individuals?

8. Does advocacy support individuals to be involved fully?

9. Do agencies work together to support timely deceion-making?

10. Are joint funding and pooled budzet arrangements used to suppaort
effective collaborative working?

11 Are people's needs understood holistically?

12 Is support tailored to maximise independence and foous on what
matters maost to the individual?

13. Is @mre coordingted and supports cont nuity'?

14 Iz communication dear, accessible and timely? Isthere accesz toa
range of methods and tools to support effective communication?

15. When transferring funding between organisations is this a seamless
processfor the individual and their loved ones?

[

100 200 30%  40%

B To 3 great extent To amoderate extent To asmall extent

S 60%

W Mot at all

Toh B0%

S0%%

1005



gy abed

Berkshire West - Strategy and Vision

Berkshire West is a more complex part of the ICS, given the absence of place co-terminosity, but it was clear to the peer team that the significant tensions
between representatives of different organisations went beyond this. The peer team was deeply concerned for staff across the system. It was clear that they
were working within an environment which did not support them to productively discuss and address issues and concerns. There were examples of very poor
communication, a lack of trust and collaboration between organisations and a defensiveness on the part of both health and social care colleagues.

The difficulties arising from poor relationships between health and social care providers frustrate the potential for a joint vision for CHC in Berkshire West.
Colleagues presented a story of frustration at the past and present ways of working, but no ambition for the future, and no plans about how to improve the
CHC journey for those coming through in future.

The peer team was very concerned to hear about the people at the centre of unresolved disputed cases — some of which have been ongoing for up to four
years. The uncertainty surrounding these will have a detrimental impact on the quality of care being offered to those people and raises serious concerns. This
is at odds with the ICS's stated vision for the population in BOB. The peer team was told there was poor communication, poor relationships and potential
variation in terms of eligibility to CHC, contributing to a backlog of cases in dispute.

There was, however, an acknowledgement from all organisations around the need for change and a commitment to address the challenges, to create a better
culture for everyone working in the service. It is important for the leadership to appreciate that there is unity around this; no one person is responsible for
changing the culture in a system but each person is responsible for their behaviour, and the commitment to create a better environment for each other brings
hope for positive change.

We understand that the need for change is recognised within the ICS and we are keen to encourage a co-designed, collaborative approach between the NHS
and local authorities, along with other local patient representatives and the care sector, to develop and sustain a different approach, learning from the
successful approaches developed in Oxfordshire and Buckinghamshire.



61 abed

Berkshire West — Performance

Across the reviews sessions with the Berkshire West system, the peer team saw a focus on process over practice, from both health and social care
perspectives. The team heard staff found it difficult to reflect on practice in a constructive and developmental way, assuming a defensive position when
professional challenge is offered. Rather than holding each other accountable for providing the best care for their people, the reflex is to defend their own
colleagues and organisation because of the history of poor relationships.

There was considerable mention from staff of the variation in CHC process and delivery compared to other places within BOB, and the peer team considered
whether the local population are achieving their best outcomes — would we feel confident as an individual or their family member that they were getting the
best service and the right outcome? Can this part of BOB feel confident that all those eligible for CHC are receiving it in a way that reflects best practice and is
equitable to the rest of BOB? This should include considering how services, such as reablement or complex care, and commissioning are utilised to support
best outcomes.

There is tension between the different ways of working with each local authority and the different resource challenges faced by each. The peer team heard of
variation between them to support the CHC process which can cause challenges in communication and delays for individuals. The parameters of the National
Framework are a challenge in this respect and there is not alignment in its understanding or application. The peer team heard examples of a local authority
not having adequate resource to prepare for and attend a DST at short notice. Again, there would appear to be an obvious opportunity to look at the
approach taken in the rest of BOB to reflect that good practice and build a new approach across the Berkshire West patch. The geography of three local
authorities need not be a barrier — there are many complex systems nationally which make this work with collaborative leadership, clear vision and strategy
and a person-centred approach to care.

Significant work has been undertaken to develop processes and procedure in Berkshire West. This is a useful base from which to build, maintaining what has
worked well and revisiting those ways of working that have not been a success, with an additional emphasis on learning from what works well in the other
parts of BOB.

We heard of significant communication issues between health and social care and an inability for colleagues to identify their counterparts in the other
organisations. We would urge any transformation work to ensure adequate time and attention is given to developing and restoring the very difficult
relationships in a supportive way, recognising how hard it has been for all staff to work in CHC in this place over recent years.



0g abed

Berkshire West — Leadership, Behaviour and Culture

The opening presentations on Day One made it clear that there were serious challenges to partnership working between the leadership from health and social
care — and this was present throughout the two days of the peer review, with this culture pervading to the more junior workforce. The peer team spoke to
partner organisations which were impacted by this lack of collaborative working and heard their concern for those individuals and their loved ones trying to
navigate the CHC process in Berkshire West at the most vulnerable time in their lives.

Demographic and inflationary pressures have put huge pressure on health and social care budgets, and there was much discussion about this by staff during
the review. It was evident to the peer team that there is a lack of trust and collaboration between leaders, which we believe is preventing them from coming
together to resolve the financial challenges for CHC in the system.

It should be noted that health colleagues considered relationships and process to be improving, citing work to improve CHC processes within the National
Framework requirements. They were surprised that local authority colleagues did not share their view. The resulting tensions, alongside the admission from
both health and social care colleagues that they felt unable to have open conversations in the absence of facilitators, led all to agree to arrange meetings
separately for health colleagues and social care colleagues. The peer team notes there is no regular forum which constructively deals with the challenges staff
are facing, though we are aware that the ICS has put in place consultancy support to address this. The peer team felt that this was urgently needed.

The challenges between health and social care organisations in Berkshire West are very visible to partner organisations, which have serious concerns for the
individuals at the centre of these. "Instead of taking a ‘how can | help you’ approach, there is a ‘how can | not be landed with you’ approach.”

There is a focus on old cases — a significant amount of time in sessions was spent discussing previous CHC reviews and the issue of disputed cases. The peer
team felt strongly that colleagues needed support to move to a more forward-thinking approach, to be more ambitious than historic, and to give them a
vision that they can work toward.

The peer team heard of significant constraints in workforce capacity in both health and social care, making it difficult to meet local CHC demands, and both
training and recruitment were noted as issues. New staff could not find organisational charts, contact details for colleagues and other partners. New staff
coming in expressed dismay at how the situation had been allowed to go on for so long.



TG abed

Berkshire West — Community Capacity

» The local care market is keen to see greater clarity in the forecasting and joint commissioning of CHC in terms of placements and funded
packages of care at home. It is looking more toward supporting neighbouring localities where the demand for CHC is clear and the
commissioning relationship more established.

» There was agreement from providers that the Market Position Statement “outlines a commitment that we are not experiencing”. Providers
detailed “difficult” working relationships with both health and social care organisations, with no health representation at provider forums and a
challenging negotiation process for uplifts.

* The peer team heard frustration from local care providers, which felt that the local CHC processes made it difficult for the most vulnerable. We
heard that the ‘end of life' emergency process is not quick enough, and when applying for urgent CHC where situations are critical, processes
can be hugely time-consuming for care staff at a time when the individual needs support in place rapidly.

» The peer team is concerned that the collective clinical staffing resource is insufficient and needs adjusting, alongside the commissioning
forecasting of the likely eligible need for CHC going forward. There is also uncertainty arising from any adjustments made to the processes and
practice identified in the transformation programme. An obvious place to start is the comparison within the ICS but then with places in other
ICSs with similar demographics and size.

* The voluntary sector and patient representatives both within Berkshire West and more widely within BOB are keen to help with the
transformation needed to address the concerns identified, through a process of co-design and co-production and creating a new way forward.



2S abed

Berkshire West - Recommendations

The very visible issues in Berkshire West need resolving for staff, the local population, and the ICS, and this will need senior executive health and social care oversight
and commitment, to ensure the transformational change required is driven forward, underpinned by a clear shared vision and person-centred approach.

The peer team saw health and social care staff show concern and support for colleagues in their organisation operating in the very stressful environment of CHC.
Adherence to the National Framework is not mutually exclusive with positive relationships — there is a need to work together to understand the wider pressures and
create ways of working which support all organisations.

We understand from colleagues in the review that the dispute process pre-dates the senior CHC leadership — it needs urgently reviewing and aligning to the other
good practice in the ICS. Significant work needs to be done to bring a close to those cases still in historic dispute via a task and finish group or using external
support.

The experience of individuals and their carers will be fundamental to the transformation process, and they need to be part of the co-design of Berkshire West CHC. It
would also be helpful to consider commissioning a generalised advocacy contract for the locality, to ensure there is a clear offer to all individuals receiving services
including those moving through their CHC journey.

The approach to partnership within the CHC structures should be wider than just between NHS and local authority representation, including also ICS senior leadership,
provider and voluntary sector representatives, and individuals and their families and carers. This should be designed into a refreshed and inclusive meeting structure,
which could support system leaders, clinicians and partners (including voluntary sector and advocacy groups) to come together to build trust in a shared process.

Experience from elsewhere in the ICS around both CHC delivery (process and practice) and developing improvement in partnership working in this area could inform a
co-designed OD programme with individuals and carers; this could support staff through a significant cultural and practice transformation with a focus on people’s
experience and outcomes.

There is a need for a user guide for individuals, and their families and carers to navigate CHC in the system, including helpful contacts and mapping of organisational
processes and timelines. There may be examples of similar products within the ICS which could be used as a starting point.

There were pieces of good practice identified by health colleagues that could offer some ‘quick wins’ to improve working and offer more streamlined practice — for
example each local authority having a CHC email inbox, to ensure queries are being picked up. Key information for individuals and a single point of access would be
useful additions to the ICB website.

There is a need to regularly evaluate processes to enable partner organisations to constructively feedback where things are not working — for example family carer
form or care home checklist. Co-design needs to be central to any redesign of processes/ways of working to ensure that they are fit for purpose and sustainable.

Where appropriate, Berkshire West colleagues should call upon the ICB's responsibility to audit fast track activity and provide feedback to referees when a fast track
has been used inappropriately; fast tracks should not be turned down.



€G abed

Oxfordshire ‘Ways of working’ self-assessment survey

To what extent...

1. Dipes your systemn put people first?

2. Do people innesd of care and support have confidence their best interests are
the focus ofthe people assessing and supporting them?

3. Are people shown dignity and respect?

4. Are deceions underpinned by clear rationale?
5. Are recommendations about a person's Continuing Healthcare made withina
multi-disciplinary team?

6. Are people empowered a5 co-producers in the assessment and planning of their
carg?

7. Do practitioners have honest 'difficult’ conversations (eg emotional
consequences) with individuals?

8. Does advocacy support individuzaks to be invalved fully?

5. Do agendes work together to support timely dedsion-making?

10, Are point funding and pooled budzet amangementsused to support effective
collaborative working?

11 Are people’s needs understood holsticlly?

12 Is support tailored to maxzimise independence and focus on what matters most
ta the individuzl?

13.Is care coordinated and supports continwity?

14 Is communication clear, accessible and timely? ks there access to a range of
miethods and tools to support effective communication?

15. When transferring funding between organisations is thisa seamless process
for the individual and their loved aones?

B To & grest extent To a moderate extent

0

(3

2

2% £l

Toa small extent

Lo 5{%6

W Mot at all

e

3

7

9% 100%



G abed

Oxfordshire - Strategy and Vision

The peer team found that there was a lot of good practice to applaud in Oxfordshire, which was set out in the joint presentation at the beginning
of the session. It set out a strong position of CHC in Oxfordshire and the peer team was impressed with conversations across the two days that
substantiated this view.

There is clarity in the strategic intent and vision for CHC in Oxfordshire and this is recognised by health and social care staff and external
stakeholders. The progress made is impressive as it came from a place of siloed working, insufficient resources and defensive organisational
behaviour. This has been turned around to achieve the current approach and the peer team was keen to recognise the work and commitment that
went in to achieve this.

There has been a recognition of the need to invest in CHC resources and staffing in order to achieve this good practice sustainably as well as
ensuring the clinical staff are available to carry out the assessments. There has been a strategic intent to resolve the historical disputes and cases
which will free staff and commissioners to concentrate on the way forward.

Overwhelmingly staff expressed concern that future changes either as a result of our review or as a result of the introduction of the ICS could see
some of the very good relationships and outcomes for people being eroded in return for uniformity. Oxfordshire colleagues wanted strategic
leaders to be very aware of those concerns going forward.

The peer team was made aware that there was a certain amount of uncertainty regarding future roles for the finance team following the formation
of BOB. They did report they expected to be told to find savings within CHC but thought this could be done via improvements in commissioning
rather than a reduction in people supported. A new recording system may help with data in this area.



GG abed

Oxfordshire — Performance

The peer team observed that, likely as a result of the strong joint working and collaborative approach, performance around CHC in Oxfordshire is strong: we saw a
real focus on person-centred practice with no assessments waiting more than 12 weeks. The system scored 83% in a recent self assessed NHS assurance exercise
and feedback from partners and advocacy organisations was very positive. It would be good to further test that out with individuals and carers.

The team heard that there is excellent training which is being delivered by OHFT and which has been an essential part of driving this change. Involving partners
and individuals receiving CHC in the development of this will have supported the person-centred approach which felt like a real strength in local CHC delivery.

While practice and partnership in Oxfordshire are strong, there appeared to be a disconnect between delivery and practice on the one hand, and financial
management and budgetary control on the other; costs are seen as too high and rising. “We just keep spending money...” CHC is a needs-led process, so if demand
goes up, spend will go up too, but it appeared that predicted and actual spend were aligned with practice (reporting). It would seem appropriate for the CHC team
to be kept informed of the spend and projected spend under their remit. Application of the eligibility criteria feels appropriate from the discussions with
practitioners, and there is good person-centred practice, but there might be ways in which the system could be more efficient in delivering outcomes and services,
without this being a “levelling down” in line with areas of lower spend.

The joint commissioning approach means that a practitioner is responsible for a person, with a pragmatic approach to allocation of funding, and Care Act and CHC
eligibility assessments are done jointly. Local authority staff are not always involved in assessments, and it is common practice for the assessor to also draw up the
care and support plan, and source the provision in most cases (this is true for the dedicated CHC team and others for example fast track individuals from hospice).
This could be seen as a further endorsement of the trust between professionals, but Oxfordshire should always ensure multi-disciplinary input into assessment.

There is much to be applauded in assessors also sourcing support, not least of which it is a person-centred approach as the individual has less people to deal with
and the staff that know them see through the process. It is, however, a time-consuming process and could lead to inconsistencies in commissioning and loss of
potential savings as a result. Consideration of when this could be safely handled by a dedicated commissioning team could be worthwhile — but do maintain focus
on a person-centred approach and continue to build process around this.

The peer team heard that in the past there had been regular meetings between CHC assessing staff and the systems finance team. This enabled assessors to have
an understanding of the budget and its projected spend, but this has not happened for over three years and now the team is not aware of its spend. There is a
more stringent approach to financial sign-off in Buckinghamshire which Oxfordshire colleagues could look towards or challenge themselves against, but remaining
aware of the risk that financial pressures are brought to bear through this, resulting in criteria or processes that are rigid.



9G abed

Oxfordshire — Leadership, Behaviour and Culture

The peer team was impressed by the strength and consistently positive feedback about partnerships around CHC in the Oxfordshire system. There is a
good relationship between NHS and local authority partners more widely, and a fully integrated health and social care team with joint funding and some
pooled budgets. Section 75 arrangements are in place over and above mandated Better Care Fund (BCF), and there is a strong consensus and partnership
around BCF planning. It was acknowledged that this had been hard won over the past four-to-five years, and some of the peers (who had previously
supported the system around system flow) were surprised and pleased to see the degree of positive change.

It was suggested (but not triangulated fully) that greater access to advice and advocacy, and greater clarity about the process, would be helpful for
individuals, families and partners, especially at an early stage. This is something which could be considered alongside roll-out of the very positive training
which is already being delivered.

The system has worked hard to develop the right leadership, behaviours and culture to embed a successful CHC approach and they are keen, as are
external stakeholders, to see this approach sustained as Oxfordshire becomes part of the BOB ICS. This message was given to and heard by the peer
review team very loudly.



1G abed

Oxfordshire - Community Capacity

The peer team did consider whether there is sufficient prevention and reablement (available, or being used by CHC teams) to mitigate against
increased costs associated with growing demand. Some interviewees reported a shortage of home-based care support, and peers wondered

whether there was a possible over-reliance on the high number of pathway 2 beds in the system, or a relative lack of rehab/reablement dedicated
services.

The current system appears to work well but that does not mean better outcomes or value could not be achieved through consideration of the
wider pathway.

The home support specification does include a reablement approach but current guidance advises against care workers trying to carry out
maintenance support and reablement work at the same time, and that better results will be achieved with dedicated workers.

Similarly, there does not seem to be any value in having two equipment pathways and processes, and these could be aligned to create the same
pathways for everyone, to maximise their outcomes regardless of whether they are to be funded through CHC.

In terms of the available community resources, OHFT has added in what it can, but wider challenges remain around workforce and care capacity
and this might be an area for wider exploration in developing future commissioning intentions. This could be an opportunity for the ICS to
develop joint approaches to workforce and relationships with the care market, as it begins to change with the increasing dependency in the
population and need to commission for better outcomes to achieve greater efficiency.

The voluntary sector and patient representatives spoke very highly of the leadership in the Oxfordshire system — the peer team did not hear high
numbers of concerns or complaints about CHC in their collective inbox and praised the introduction of the CHC helpline and toolkit which had led
to a significant reduction in the queries they received. They did, however, say that there was still a need to increase essential information and
publicity about CHC.

There is a need also to increase the availability of advocacy as more people are in need and this is difficult to source.



gG abed

Oxfordshire - Recommendations

The peer team was impressed with the work in Oxfordshire and recognises that the comments we make as part of this review are additional reflections to
improve what is already a very good approach. Most importantly, there is a person-centred approach for people and their carers, and the staff feel
empowered to seek the best outcomes for the people they serve.

As in other areas of this review, there is learning and challenge that could be developed through engagement with other parts of the system. For
Oxfordshire this would have particular benefit in a closer connection between practice and budgetary management/forecasting, to allow more local
reflection on commissioning decisions and options. Buckinghamshire has a closer link between practice and financial management (while maintaining
good practice and outcomes) and some peer-to-peer case reviews — and consideration of how neighbouring processes operate and benefit — could assure
Oxfordshire of both quality and value, while retaining the excellent person-centred approach.

Conversely, Oxfordshire could share both its excellent training provision more widely with partners in the ICS (this is already happening in
Buckinghamshire) as well as its experience of the work involved in developing its partnerships over the past few years. While this can provide a hopeful
model for colleagues in Berkshire West system, it will also offer a chance for Oxfordshire colleagues to reflect on and celebrate their very positive journey,
and how to maintain this as the ICS moves forward.

It will be important to protect the excellent working practice and relationships against an ICS move toward uniformity — localised working appears to be
producing best outcomes for the Oxfordshire community and this needs to be maintained while recognising the current inequalities across the ICS. A
levelling up agenda is the right way to achieve equitable success in CHC across the system, not levelling down in terms of practice, process and outcome.

There could be further consideration of how wider pathway capacity (around reablement for example) could be developed to mitigate the impact of
increasing demand — while this is a system-wide challenge, it may apply most to Oxfordshire where the financial envelope may be more stretched. For
instance, while there are no easy solutions to a lack of home-based support (for both CHC and discharge to assess), it may be possible for improved
procurement of such services if some resources can be moved from bed-based options. This could be something that forms part of discussions around
wider commissioning intentions.



65 abed

ICS Observations

Peers recognised that there are areas of "legitimate” difference across the system. Consideration as to what is best done at ICS level and what is best implemented
at place level will be important for CHC delivery (as indeed it will for many other areas of work going forward) in BOB, not least to avoid destabilising existing
good practice where things are working well.

In all ICSs where multiple health and care systems have been brought into a single new organisation, different processes, approaches and cultures in different
parts of the whole risk inequitable outcomes or experience of CHC processes for individuals, as well as confusion between staff doing similar roles in different
parts of the wider system around what is expected of them. A shared approach to core governance, oversight, and assurance of practice and processes associated
with CHC would satisfy concerns in this regard, while not necessarily implying that all localities need to use identical approaches in frontline teams.

There are areas of strong performance for CHC across the ICS, but the data suggests that there is also inconsistency of take-up, outcomes and process across the
whole. We heard concern expressed about differences in the approach to CHC leading to a difference in the offer across the ICS, and whether this is acceptable.
For example, how choice was balanced against costs was differentially managed between different systems (for example, what if a home care provider costs more
than nursing care).

It is worth looking across the system to see what works, develop peer-led assurance processes, baselining against the number of referrals, conversions, waiting
times, and financial data.

The positive example of work in Buckinghamshire recently — in 2018 the system was an outlier for CHC so made the decision to outsource to OHFT which was
already providing the CHC assessment service for Oxfordshire — led to the number of CHC cases dropping to 410, and clinical and commissioning practice now
appears to be robust and working well for individuals receiving care.

The peer team heard about examples of strong and effective partnerships, which have been hard won in Oxfordshire over the past several years, and which are
now developing also in Buckinghamshire. The latter are perhaps at a slightly less advanced stage of practical implementation (such as around pooled budgets, or
shared processes), but this is a work in progress, and with a clear direction of travel. The peer team urges the ICS to draw from the success in Oxfordshire and
Buckinghamshire to provide a model for Berkshire West to address some of the challenges which they presently face. “Up to a year ago, OHFT CHC team and
Buckinghamshire County Council commissioners were speaking different languages...CHC experts were brought into CCG(ICS), and this has been sorted.”

Resources are a constant challenge in terms of workforce (both for clinical and care leadership, and in middle management roles); and to finance where
demographics and changing population needs are placing an increasing strain on budgets. For workforce, consideration could be given to opportunities to take a
strategic approach across the ICS. OHFT is looking at innovative ways of improving recruitment including recruitment and retention incentives, wider advertising,
flexibility for core hours, compressed hours, hybrid working, and different roles (and bandings). Building on some of these initiatives, and potentially looking to
develop more joint or aligned posts could help.



09 abed

ICS Observations

Costs of care packages are rising due to inflationary issues and creates pressure on budgets. Developing greater collaboration between commissioning and
planning care — and the costs associated with this — would help to forecast demand and potentially to identify variability in practice across the ICS. While CHC is
needs-led funding and budgetary management should not impact on eligibility, greater scrutiny of commissioned care could offer the potential for greater
market management and shaping, or indeed to encourage the use of services such as reablement, which might mitigate some of the pressures arising from
demography.

Baselining spend and sharing learning between different parts of the system could be helpful — but not with an assumption that all parts of the system would
reduce cost in line with the lowest, rather that best clinical practice be used as a baseline for best value. For example, a dedicated post within the previous
Buckinghamshire CCG has been used to forecast CHC activity and ensure any overspends are recouped efficiently; stratifying people meeting CHC eligibility is
being looked at to see if funding could be spent differently (starting with end of life services, where hospices involved in Fast Track followed up on people who
do not meet CHC eligibility to understand what support could be provided).

Peers explored a similar question around the availability and use of specific services; is there sufficient capacity across wider pathways, not just in CHC delivery?
And if so, is it being sufficiently prioritised and utilised? For example, a greater emphasis on reablement or early intervention to ensure that all people have the
opportunity to optimise their functioning and abilities ahead of a CHC checklist and potential DST would have the potential not only to improve outcomes, but
maybe also to reduce costs of CHC packages and demand on other health services including acute hospitals. Person-centred practice can develop efficiencies in
service by early intervention and reablement, and investment in models of care that keep people at home early on can avoid higher-cost CHC packages.
Demography and complexity of needs are increasing pressure on CHC and mitigating this through prevention / reablement and by best use of care planning is
key.

The peer team was uncertain whether sufficient consideration is at present given to different client groups (e.g. LD, autism, dementia, in particular those with
challenging behaviours) and how provision may need to be adapted to their needs? For instance, can those with dementia / delirium be assessed at home rather
than in a care setting, to get best assessment of their future needs?

There is a lot of concern about the impact of ICS changes, in teams or roles and likely restructures in such functions as finance and commissioning. Similarly,
some staff were concerned that future changes, either as a result of this review, or through coming together as a wider ICS, could see some of the very good
relationships and outcomes being eroded as a price for uniformity. Mitigating the impact of the resulting uncertainty and anxiety for staff will be important over
the coming months, as will protecting and finding ways to celebrate good practice where it is happening under the current system.

We heard that joint training provided an important means of developing relationships and shared vision, as well as shared understanding of processes and
practice. There appears to be some good examples of joint approaches to training which have had positive impact — in Oxfordshire, for example — and rolling this
out more widely could be a quick win, bringing people together to work on the issues they are grappling with.



T9 abed

ICS Recommendations

The ICS needs to examine what is working well in the component parts of BOB, to consider how best practice and process can be achieved across the patch,
and how the ICS can get the best outcomes for the population served.

There needs to be a new governance framework to establish what should happen at place level and what can be consistent across the ICS — this should be co-
designed with all partners and stakeholders.

The person-centred practice seen by the peer team needs to be embedded across the ICS, with leadership ensuring that this is delivered in the most efficient
way which makes best use of resources and maximises the outcomes for people and their carers. The NHS components of an integrated CHC service could
have a dotted line to the nursing directorate for quality oversight especially focusing on patient experience.

The clinical practice we heard about in Oxfordshire and Buckinghamshire needs to be supported and built on, and considered in the transformation of the
Berkshire West approach. There is an urgent need for transformational change in CHC in Berkshire West, which we understand the ICS has already
commissioned. This needs to be co-designed and co-produced by all partners and stakeholders to ensure engagement and commitment.

The implementation of policy, practice and procedures needs review across the ICS to ensure that all staff are aware of the latest guidance. The excellent
training and support given to staff in Oxfordshire and Buckinghamshire needs to be available to all.

There are many more opportunities to collaborate across the ICS in terms of market shaping and joint commissioning. A joint workforce strategy, for example,
would reduce the overhead costs for all partners.

Collaboration is also needed to increase the communication with and engagement of the care market with joint provider forums and training to build parity
of partnership with the sector.

There is a need to move away from the difference in access to CHC across the ICS. Understanding why this is and what needs to be done will need careful
exploration of the data and qualitative analysis of case reviews to understand where the inconsistencies are and how they affect outcomes for people and
their carers. The ICS should be confident that everyone who is eligible for CHC funding is in receipt of it.

Underpinning this, as part of the wider work bringing partners together in the new ICS, there is a need to develop a single, clearly stated and widely
communicated, statement about the strategic ambition and vision for CHC across Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West. While local clinical and
commissioning processes may vary across the place footprints, ICS leaders should work towards equality of outcomes for individuals on their continuing
healthcare journey, regardless of where they live in BOB.



Next Steps

*  We would like to thank Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West ICS for welcoming the peer team into your system, and for your
openness and frankness with peers. It has been a privilege to meet you and your colleagues, and to hear about your journey, and the work you
have been doing.

* Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West ICS should be commended for their engagement in this CHC peer review at this early stage in
the development of the ICS: this is one of the first we have done. We hope that it may provide a model for future support and we would welcome
feedback on the approach and support to cascade the learning from this review to other systems.

* This report is the last stage of the formal peer review, but the first step of the journey onwards from it. We would encourage Buckinghamshire,
Oxfordshire and Berkshire West ICS to share key messages from this report among its partners, and to develop a plan for how to respond to it.

* As part of that process Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West ICS might consider what further support from the Local Government
Association or NHS England might be helpful, and we will be pleased to discuss this further.

29 abed



NHS

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire
and Berkshire West

Integrated Care Board

All Age Continuing Care
— Transformation Plan

€9 abed




79 abed

INHS|
S u m m a ry Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire

and Berkshire West
Integrated Care Board

The Local Government Association (LGA) Peer Review highlighted some areas for improvement
within the All Age Continuing Care (AACC) delivery across the ICS.

This illustrated the need for better joint working relationships; not just for the ICB AACC team to
address but more broadly across the ICS to deliver effectively for our population.

The ICB commissioned external consultancy to review how AACC could be improved within the ICB
recognising that transformation in All Age Continuing Care (AACC) is an ongoing process.

The ICB set up a Transformation Board of which all LAs were members

A set of recommendations were developed and approved by the ICB and supported by the
members of the Transformation Board

It should also be noted that the two CHC teams covering Oxfordshire and Buckinghamshire and
hosted by Oxford Health Foundation Trust have moved back into the ICB’s management



G9 abed

Transformation Team AACC Recommendations

Recommendation

NHS!

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire
and Rerkshire West
:d Care Board

To agree that operational delivery of the service supports the core functions
and processes

To agree that the number of operational delivery teams is reduced to two,
with Berkshire West merging with Buckinghamshire and Oxfordshire
remaining as at present under one operational management structure
where assessments and case management are undertaken by locally based
teams and all other functions are managed at scale across the ICB.

To agree a governance structure that is clear and unambiguous and which
supports the vertical/horizontal integrated structure being proposed.

To agree that the future of the AACC service is based upon vertically
integrated structure with a clear line of visibility from top to bottom so that
the end to end process of AACC can be managed holistically rather than at
place

To agree an AACC Functions structure that will form the basis for a staffing
structure that can deliver AACC business efficiently and effectively with a
focus on the individual.




Transformation Team AACC Recommendations

Recommendation

* To agree an AACC Functions structure that will form the basis for a
staffing structure that can deliver AACC business efficiently and
effectively with a focus on the individual.

NHS!

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire

and Rerkshire West
jrated Care Board

* To agree a 18month to 2 year transformational change in the AACC
service and proceed with implementation

99 abed

* To agree to proceed with implementation immediately and with a
sense of urgency so that momentum is maintained and
staff/stakeholders can begin to understand how and where they will fit
into the new system.




19 abed

Impact of Transformation

* To meet the requirements of
the National Framework and
associated legislation

e To take advantage of ‘at scale’
opportunities

* To improve the patient
experience

e To ensure oversight of
performance and improvement
in performance

* To reduce variation

Ensure there is equity in
eligibility across the ICB

Commissioning of
complex and specialist
care

Improve our systems and
processes

Identify areas for
improvement in
performance and patient
experience

Ensure there is equity in
eligibility across the ICB

NHS!

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire

and Berkshire West

Integrated Care Board



Benefits of Implementation of the Transformation Plan
NHS

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire
and Berkshire West

Integrated Care Board

PDSSibi“ﬁﬁ *A bigger geography that would offer

g9 abed

v
(v
U
0
®
U
e
3
)
0
a

o(lear line of sight

*Defined
accountabilities

*Policies and
processes

»Performance
management

»Commissioning and
contracting

»Complex care
oCulture
oRisk management

*AACC business
functions in one
place

*Hearing one voice
from patients

*Doing the right
things at scale

*(entralised
expertise
*Systems and data

*Consistent reporting
to NHSE

Joint working

*One face to market
with LAs

oFocus on local
relationships

*Meaningful
partnerships

*Opportunities for
local dialogue

oL ocal brokerage
+Joint training
»Sharing expertise

more opportunity to be more efficient
and effective in staffing and
consistency of approach

eMore flexibility in managing the CHC
service via staff and budgets

*An opportunity to reset relationships
with the three Berkshire West local
authorities to improve collaboration
*An opportunity for some of the good
practice evident in Buckinghamshire to
be infused into Berkshire West

*To re-imagine a different way of
organising activity at place level that
does not just continue with the old
CCG areas as there is a danger that this
may be regarded as ‘business as usual’
when what is required is
transformational change



69 abed

Next Steps
NHS

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire
and Berkshire West

Integrated Care Board

Revised governance established with all 5 LAs as members
Project manager appointed

Development of project plan with key milestones

New staffing structure has been approved and formal consultation with all
CHC staff will commence in September and will run for 30 days
Interviews for new posts will commence in November

Implementation of patient experience survey



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 70



Agenda Iltem 8

Health Scrutiny Committee — 12 September 2023

Item 8 — Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and
Berkshire West Integrated Care Board Update

Verbal Item

Page 71



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 72



healthwatch9c"da 'tem S

West Berkshire

Report to the Scrutiny Board September 2023 — Priorities update

Priority

Update

Refresh of
Healthwatch West
Berks within Service
Providers

We are ensuring a complete refresh of HWWB in the community by:

e Visiting all GP surgeries, Dentists and pharmacists to foster working
relationships.

e Ensuring HWWB comms are situated in public view, e.g., posters on
walls in waiting rooms, feed-back forms readily av ailable in services.

Increasing awareness
of Healthwatch West
Berks

We hav e continued to promote Healthwatch West Berks within the
community by:
e Enhancingrelationships with the Voluntary Care Sector and Local
Council within West Berkshire.
e Atftending: Fairclose Day Centre, Educafe, Speen Community Café,
Health and Wellbeing Board.
¢ We willbe extending outinto the community by attending Family
Fun Days, and service events.

Healthwatch Priorities
Survey Responses

A Health and Social Care Priorities survey was sent outin April on social
media platforms and through v oluntary organisations. We had 127
responses. The priorities residents asked us to look at are:

GP services (Accessto) — 54%

GP services (Quality of) — 38%

Adult Mental Health services — 29%

Cost of Living concerns—26%

Pharmacy and Prescription services — 23%

A joint project (GP Access) between the three Healthwatch in Place,
HW West Berkshire, HW Reading and HW Wokingham will be starting
in September.

Healthwatch
Workplan

We are now in the process of finalising our w orkplan with our Advisory
Board. Currently, our priorities are:

e GP service and quality — public understanding of new ways of working
and self-care options.

e Adult Mental Health — Explore why there is anincrease in West Berks.
We hav e joined the Community Mental Health Transformation
Programme.

e Costof Living - How itis affecting health in the community.

e Young Healthwatch- Development of a Healthw atch foryoung
people aged 8 -25

e Recruitment of Community Engagement v olunteers.

We are further monitoring comments made on pharmacy and subscription
services within the survey to identify any themes/recurring issues.

On our watchlist:

Page 73




Phlebotomy

Accident and Emergency Service — waiting times.
Building Berkshire Together developments

Women's health (this is a priority of Healthw atch England)

Cost of Living—impact on prescription and attendance at hospital
appointments

e Phlebotomy Services

e Pharmacy

Page 74




Agenda Iltem 10

Health Scrutiny Committee — 12 September 2023

Item 10 -Task & Finish Group Updates

Verbal Item

Page 75



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 76



) ) abed

Health Scrutiny Committee Work Programme

The following items will be considered in addition to Standing Items: Updates from Task and Finish Groups

Purpose

12 September 2023 (Report Deadline 25 August)

Health Body

Last Updated:
Sept 2023
Prioritisation
Score

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire

Continuing Health Care (CHC) To review the All Age CHC Transformation Programme. and Berkshire West Integrated 14
Care Board
Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire

Access to Primary Care To review access to primary care across West Berkshire. and Berkshire West Integrated 14
Care Board

12 December 2023 (Report Deadline 23 November)
Emotional Wellbeing of Children, . . Berkshire Healthcare NHS
. To review the approach to the mental health and emotional .

and Children and Young People wellbeing of vouna oeoble in West Berkshire Foundation Trust and West 14

Mental Health Services (CAMHS) g ot young peop ' Berkshire Council

Maternal Mental Health To rewew the services supporting women and families with TBC 14

perinatal mental health care.
12 March 2024 (Report Deadline 22 February)
Inquest Review Panel To receive the annual report from the Inquest Review Panel. West Berkshire Council N/A
Other Items to be programmed
Suicide Prevention To review the approach to suicide prevention in West Berkshire. |TBC 13
. To review the Community Mental Health Tranformation Programme|Berkshire Healthcare NHS
Adult Mental Health Services and Adult Mental Health Services in West Berkshire. Foundation Trust 13
Rural Mental Health To review how mental health services are delivered to the rural TBC 13

population in West Berkshire.

TT Wa)| epusaby



g/ abed

Update on Pharmacy services and current provision since

Pharmacy attending Health Scrutiny Committee in March 2023. NHS England N/A
Dentist Update on the current provision and progress since attending NHS England and NHS N/A
Y Health Scrutiny Committee in December 2022. Improvement
. Update on Diabetes Services since attending the Health Scrutiny Bucklnghamshlre, Oxfordshire
Diabetes : : and Berkshire West Integrated N/A
Committee in June 2023.
Care Board
D e e ey [P, Ot
Dementia 9y P y g Yland Berkshire West Integrated N/A

Committee in June 2023. To include the strategic approach to
prevention including involvement of public health.

Care Board

Standing Items

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire
and Berkshire West Integrated
Care Boad

To receive an update from the Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and
Berkshire West Integrated Care Boad on their activities.

Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire
and Berkshire West Integrated
Care Boad

At every meeting

Healthwatch West Berkshire
Report

To receive an update from Healthwatch West Berkshire on patient
feedback received, reports prepared and other activities.

Healthwatch West Berkshire

At every meeting

Inquest Review Panel

To receive the annual report from the Inquest Review Panel

West Berkshire Council

Annual - March




	Agenda
	1 Apologies
	2 Minutes
	3 Actions from previous Minutes
	4 Declarations of Interest
	5 Petitions
	6 Access to Primary Care
	Default Section
	Slide 1: Access to Primary Care 2023/24
	Slide 2: Introduction
	Slide 3: Access to primary care
	Slide 4: Appointment types
	Slide 5: Time between booking and appointment (Target 85% within 2 weeks)
	Slide 6: Follow-up actions
	Slide 7:  Access Recovery Plan: Delivery plan for recovering access to primary care (england.nhs.uk) 
	Slide 8
	Slide 9
	Slide 10
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13
	Slide 14
	Slide 15: How primary care works with other services
	Slide 16:  Questions and discussion


	7 Continuing Health Care
	7. Continuing Healthcare Report
	Slide 1
	Slide 2
	Slide 3
	Slide 4
	Slide 5
	Slide 6
	Slide 7


	8 Update from Buckinghamshire, Oxfordshire and Berkshire West Integrated Care Board
	9 Healthwatch Update
	10 Task and Finish Group Updates
	11 Health Scrutiny Committee Work Programme

